GRAMPA'S PRAYERS & POEMS



"Children are a heritage of the Lord" (Psalm 127:3)

Brooky R Stockton

GRAMPA'S PRAYERS & POEMS Version 2.2



Dr. Grampa

PO Box 884 Tijeras, New Mexico (87059)

January 2025

This E-Book is not for sale. Freely Received, Freely Given

https://nikeinsights.famguardian.org/ https://famguardian.org/ https://sedm.org/

Dedication

To my Grandchildren

Fear the Lord,
And walk with Him on Eagle's wings.
Learn to say "No!" when sinners call,
Do your duty in all things.

Carry the staff of faith, hope, and love,
As you walk down Calvary's Road.
Washing feet along the way,
Relishing the love that flowed.

Table of Contents

De	dication	3	
Та	ble of Contents	4	
Pro	eface	7	
		_	
Ac	knowledgments	8	
Gr	Grampa Poems & Prayers		
On	Prayers	10	
	Always to Pray	10	
	Prayer, the Duty of Men	10	
	Only Two Religions	12	
	The Best of Desires	13	
	The Doubting Thomas Not	14	
	The Richest People on Earth	15	
	Sunshine in Her Heart	16	
	My Favorite Poem	17	
Pra	ayers for Sons & Grandsons	17	
	Prayers for Salvation	17	
	A Son's Prayer for Manhood	19	
	Faithful and True	20	
	Being a Man the Best You Can	21	
	Kippling on the Marks of a Man	22	
	Things to Remember	23	
	Is There A Lion in the House?	23	
	At the Foot of the Cross		
	My Salvation		
	John Newton on Walking with God	25	
	Make Him True	26	
	A Prayer on Walking with God	27	
	An Eagle's Heart	29	
	A Prayer for Businessmen	30	
	Prayers for Prodigals	31	
	Prayers for the Sick	32	
Pra	ayers for Daughters & Grandaughters	34	
	A Wonderful Daughter-in-Law	36	
	A Prayer for Guidance	37	
	Golden Treasures	38	
	A Prayer for Abby	39	

	Lead Her to Christ	. 40
	Best Advice from my Sister	. 41
Pol	itical and Spiritual Insights	. 41
	The Fool	
	The Glad Dad	
	The Old Rich Man	
	The Saving Squirrel	
	Gender Bender Craziness	
	Sex Education	
	The Hunter and the Prey	
	The Dying Man	
	The Man with No Friends	
	The Sin of Gluttony	. 46
	The Tragic Church	
	Two Birds a Chirppin' in an Apple Tree	
	The Cop	
	The Family Pet	. 48
	The Happy Dawg,	. 49
	Two Monkeys Sittin' in a Tree	
	Armenianism	. 50
	A Church Disaster	. 50
	The Authority of God's Word	. 51
	Where's the Holy Veil?	. 52
	The Idolatrous Tattoo	. 52
	The Vile Church	. 53
	The Good Church	. 53
	The Seven Deadly Sins	. 53
	Led a Man to Christ One Day	. 55
	Grace is the Key	. 56
	The Woke Church	. 57
	The Antinomian Church	. 57
	The Liar from the IRS	. 57
	Taxi taxi	. 58
	So What?	. 59
	Lying Politicians	. 59
	Don't Fret Abortion	. 60
	On the Sin of Pornography	. 61
	The Root of Bitterness	. 61
	The Transvestie	. 62
	Is Michelle Obama a Tranny?	. 62
	The Chatterbox from Tennessee	. 63
	A Lesson on Human Nature	. 63
	The Climate Change Disaster	. 64

D	hlications	7.7
	A Little Haiku	69
	Meanderings on Death	
	Pity the Prune	
	The Secret	65
	Confession	65

Preface

This work represents the meanderings of an unhinged Grampa for his children and grandchildren.

Hopefully, a model for the reader to follow.



Acknowledgments

Many thanks to the websites for offering free pics for illustrations
Freepik
Unsplash
Art Explosions
Creative Commons License # 89632483
Unknown Sources

This work is for personal use and the blessing of others. It is not for sale (2024). If any graphics in this work trespass on copyright laws, please inform within 60 days of publication so they can be removed.

Dr. Brooky Stockton P.O. Box 1452 Tijeras, New Mexico - 87059

This book is not anti-government, but it may be anti-corruption in government.

NOTICE to persons in commerce, State and Federal Government offices and officials, including NSA: All emails proceed on the presumption of privacy. By capturing, reading, storing, and filing any publications from or to Nike Insights nunc pro tunc to 1946, you agree to pay me a fee of one million dollars in U.S. gold dollar coin per email stored, filed, retrieved, printed, or catalogued—Brooky R: Stockton, living soul, under the common law of the LORD God.

Grampa Poems & Prayers



On Prayers

♦ Only one life to live, will soon be past, Only what's done for Christ will last.

Always to Pray

Jesus Noticed a Weakness in Men.

Men ought always to pray, And not faint, For this is the way, Of a holy saint.

> Don't be a quitter, And give in to sin, Persistent be, Like faithful men.

God is just,
And will not delay,
His love and grace,
He will display.

Luke 18:1 And he spake a parable unto them to this end, that men ought always to pray, and not to faint;

Prayer, the Duty of Men

By Christian

Men Must Lead!

♦ Look around, and what do you see, Christians living in apostasy.

In church women praying, oh what a shame, No covering on their head, men are to blame.

A correction in the church is needed now, Let good men lead and now avow:

> Always to pray and not to faint, In order to be a holy saint.

Never let a woman say grace, when a man is around, This principle is hard, but quite profound.

It is the duty of men, to lead and to pray, Women leading in prayer is to go astray.

God gave man to be the head of the wife, To increase the joy, and reduce the strife.

Prayer is the duty of man, Because he is the head, and not a footman.

Men led Israel and the people of God, For a woman leading would be quite odd.

A woman in charge is not her station,

This rule was followed for the good of the nation.

Weak men may assign, their wife to pray, But this is not Biblical, nor the Christian way.

When it comes to a blessing and saying grace,

The manly man must always embrace.

Accept this duty, do not refrain, Lead simply in prayer, and never complain.

Start today, take leadership in the house,

Be a man and not a mouse!

Some moderns may disagree, Read the Bible. What do you see?

- 1 Timothy 2:8 I will therefore that men (andros, males) pray every where, lifting up holy hands, without wrath and doubting.
- 1 Timothy 2:12 But I suffer not a woman (gune, females) to teach, nor to usurp authority over the man, but to be in silence.

Only Two Religions

♦ There are only two religions on the table,
One is good, the other a fable.

Two men came to worship God, One was true, the other a fraud. Cain brought beans, from his crop, Abel brought a lamb, from his flock.

God accepted blood, as the means to please, But the fruit of Cain's labor, did not appease.

Blood is the currency of the spirit world, To appease His wrath against sin unfurled.

Judaism and Hinduism offer beets and beans, Christians trust, the blood of the Lamb that cleans.

Hebrews 9:22 And almost all things are by the law purged with blood; and without shedding of blood is no remission.

The Best of Desires

If you had one prayer to pray what would it be?

Because you will become the sum total of your hungers, pray this prayer.

Lord, I pray.

♦ For a heart that seeks, and a soul that yearns, For a thirst so deep, it cries to be quenched, Like blazing sands, screaming to be drenched, Only for You my Spirit burns.

> As a deer pants after the water brook, My thirsty soul pants after Thee. With eyes of faith, let me see.

To Christ and Calvary, let me look.

I've a scrawny, emaciated soul,
The old rugged cross let me see,
What the bleeding Savior, did for me,
To cleanse my sin, and make me whole.

Up to the clouds, let my spirit rise,

Just and holy let me be.

With eyes of faith my Lord to see,

Like rainbows in the skies.

Psalm 42:1 As the deer panteth after the water brooks, so panteth my soul after thee, O God.

The Doubting Thomas Not

♦ Is there such a thing as immortality, Or is the grave the doom of man? Is there more than gold and materiality, Something other than this lifespan?

Thomas was not a doubter to me,

Not upon rumors could hope be ground,

Evidence he needed, fingers touching, eyes to see,

He needed proof for his hope to be sound.

Faith in faith cannot be crowned,
We need more than a whim and a dream,
We need proof, for hope to abound.
Evidence upon, which we can lean.

He put his finger in Jesus' side,
Trying to figure out reality.
Only upon this touch his faith did thrive,
For the hope of immortality.

The Richest People on Earth

Testimony of Grampa and Grammy

"Unless a man forsake all he cannot be my disciple."

We received the Lord, and began the race;
Forever leaning, upon His grace!
When it came to marry, my Love said "Yes!"
The Lord was with us, and we were blessed!

We sold our goods, and gave to the poor,

Soon to discover, an open door.

Off to Emmaus we went,

Our bank account empty, and our money spent.

We walked by faith, not by sight;
Taking up the cross, fighting the fight!
With God at our side,
El Shaddai did provide.

Sharing Christ, the best we could;
Preaching the gospel, as we knew we should.
Stumbling and fumbling, as humans do,
Yet, we found Him faithful and true.

Raised from the dead, out of a dark, black tomb.

He's fairer than the lilies, of the brightest bloom.

From the treasures of the gospel, we are relieved,

Forgiveness and grace, we have received.

We studied our Bible till the pages were worn,
He blessed our sowing and-a church was born.
We prayed and strayed, and prayed even more,
Till our hearts did roar, and our knees were sore.

We walked by faith, and not by sight, Trusting the Lord, with all our might. Though carrying the cross was all uphill, We never missed a meal or paying a bill.

With Christ at our side, He did sustain,
Devils and demons. he did restrain!
Faithful and true, we praise Him today,
Our souls are full, He did not betray.

Sunshine in Her Heart

♦ Lord, my dear wife has trouble with her memory, Help me be kind, and gentle as I can be. May she feel your love by what I do, Sunshine in her heart under skies a-blue, Just like Christ shows love to me.

My Favorite Poem

Amy Charmichaael

Hast thou no scar?

No hidden scar on foot, or side, or hand?

I hear thee sung as mighty in the land,

I hear them hail thy bright ascendant star,

Hast thou no scar?

Hast thou no wound?

Yet I was wounded by the archers, spent,
Leaned Me against a tree to die, and rent
by ravening beasts that compassed Me, I swooned:
Hast thou no wound?

No wound, no scar?

Yet as the Master shall the servant be,
And, pierced are the feet that follow Me;
But thine are whole: can he have followed far
Who has no wound nor scar?

Prayers for Sons & Grandsons

Prayers for Salvation

For my sons and grandsons

John 3:14-15 And as Moses lifted up the serpent in the wilderness, even so must the Son of man be lifted up: That whosever believeth in him should not perish, but have eternal life.

♦ Lord, may all my sons see Christ, the wonders of the incarnation on Christmas day, and what He accomplished at the Calvary on behalf of sinners: May they look to the cross and be healed from sin, pride, lusts, avarice, and the seven great sins of men. May their motto be:

Cruci dum spiro fido!

1 Corinthians 16:13 Watch ye, stand fast in the faith, quit you like men, be strong.

♦ Lord, may they be manly men who accept responsibility. May they endure hardship with your strength while believing in your sovereignty, goodness, holiness, and love.

Make them tough and tender - true gentlemen with bones of steel and hearts of honey. Help them to take up the cross, die to self, and serve others with joy and power.

Romans 6:11 Likewise reckon ye also yourselves to be dead indeed unto sin, but alive unto God through Jesus Christ our Lord.

♦ Lord, may my sons think like Christians united to Christ, dead to sin, and alive to God.

Micah 6:8 8 He hath shewed thee, O man, what is good; and what doth the LORD require of thee, but to do justly, and to love mercy, and to walk humbly with thy God?

♦ Lord, may my sons be like Enoch who walked with God, daring to trek alone, apart from the smog and fog of this dirty world. May they guard

their tongue, learn self-discipline, and walk in the Spirit as sensible, reasonable, responsible men. Help them to love your law and to do justly; to love your character and to do good; to shun pride and be humble, holy, and happy men.

May they love Your Word, honor Your Name, and be rebels against the world saying in their hearts, "Thy kingdom come, Thy will be done."

May they realize the evils, lies, sins, deception, and propaganda of government; to claim their God-given rights, and use those rights to lead their families and to govern their businesses with integrity.

Matthew 28:18-20 And Jesus came and spake unto them, saying, All power is given unto me in heaven and in earth. Go ye therefore, and teach all nations, baptizing them in the name of the Father, and of the Son, and of the Holy Ghost: Teaching them to observe all things whatsoever I have commanded you: and, lo, I am with you alway, even unto the end of the world. Amen.

♦ Lord, may my sons acknowledge your authority and sovereignty; and courageously proclaim the gospel to the lost. Deliver them from the fear of men . . . of government . . . and all that seeks to silence their Christian witness. Give them eyes of faith, power from above, and devoted hearts. Amen!

A Son's Prayer for Manhood

♦ I pray for strength to embrace manhood, To walk kindly and justly and to do what's good. Tough and tender and holy be, To become like Christ is my plea. Growing in Christ and self-control,
Living like a freeman, not on parole.
Put kindness and wisdom on my tongue,
Honey and vinegar, whether old or young.

When it comes to time die,

Let me rejoice, and never sigh,

Let me follow the Lord, and the old rugged cross.

For Christ is gain, and not a loss.

Philippians 1:21 For me to live is Christ, to die is gain

Faithful and True

A Prayer for a Man

♦ Lord, make me faithful and true, Always relying upon you.

Deliver me from the sins of this age, Make me wise like a Solomon sage.

Set a guard over my mouth

Let my words please you and never go south.

Let my needy heart pant after thee, Obeying your Word, while living free.

Keep me from idols, and help me trust, Saying "No" to sins, and other lusts. Help me to love my wife and kids, And, to do what the Spirit bids.

May I honor you in all that I do,
To the vineyard you give me, be faithful and true.

Being a Man the Best You Can

Advise to Caleb by Grampa (2025)

♦ Be a man as a man, the best you can, Building on the Rock, and not the sand.

Walking with God,

Controlling your tongue,

Pursuing His Word,

Confronting sin,

Enduring troubles, and

Serving others.

Seeking His will on a battered hill,

Trusting in Christ and being still.

Be a man under God, the best you can,
Building on the Rock, and not the sand.
Believing His Word,
Resting in His Promises,
Praying much,
Obeying His law, and
Claiming His grace.
Seeking His will on a battered hill,
Trusting in Christ and being still.

Be a man in the home, the best you can,
Building on the Rock, and not the sand.

Leading your wife,
Praying with her
Teaching her,
Forgiving her,
Tying your souls into one.
Seeking His will on a battered hill,
Trusting in Christ and being still.

Kippling on the Marks of a Man

"If" by Rudyard Kipling

♦ If you can keep your head when all about you Are losing theirs and blaming it on you; If you can trust yourself when all men doubt you, But make allowance for their doubting too: If you can wait and not be tired by waiting, Or, being lied about, don't deal in lies, Or being hated don't give way to hating, And yet don't look too good, nor talk too wise; If you can dream- -and not make dreams your master; If you can think- -and not make thoughts your aim, If you can meet with Triumph and Disaster And treat those two impostors just the same:. If you can bear to hear the truth you've spoken Twisted by knaves to make a trap for fools, Or watch the things you gave your life to, broken, And stoop and build'em up with worn-out tools;

If you can make one heap of all your winnings And risk it on one turn of pitch-and-toss, And lose, and start again at your beginnings, And never breathe a word about your loss: If you can force your heart and nerve and sinew To serve your turn long after they are gone, And so hold on when there is nothing in you Except the Will which says to them: 'Hold on!' If you can talk with crowds and keep your virtue, Or walk with Kings- -nor lose the common touch, If neither foes nor loving friends can hurt you, If all men count with you, but none too much: If you can fill the unforgiving minute With sixty seconds' worth of distance run, Yours is the Earth and everything that's in it, And--which is more--you'll be a Man, my son!

Things to Remember

Psalm 19:7-14

♦ Golden treasures found, Love not money or yourself, Gems of Righteousness.

Is There A Lion in the House?

To Caleb from Grampa (2025)

Based on Psalm 1

(Note the word "meditate" (haga) refers to the roaring of a lion - Isaiah 31:4).

♦ Is there a lion in the house, that says "No" to sinners?

Is there a lion in the house of Stockton,

Saying no to transgressors, with courage and passion,

Or a midget of a man controlled by wrongdoers?

Is there a lion in the house or only a mouse?

Is there a lion in the house of Stockton,

Roaring over His Word, with hunger and passion,

Or a midget of a man, that acts like a mouse? (1 Chr. 16:9)

Is there a tree growing, by the rivers of water?

Is there a tree in the house of Stockton,

Bearing fruit in its season,

Pleasing to the Planter?

Is there a lion in the house that is steel-clad?

Is there a lion growling, thirsting, praying,

studying, loving God, and Him pursuing?

Share it with your Dad, and make him glad.

A bond you should always renew.

Through laughter and tears, he'll stand by your side,

A lighthouse in life's changing tide,

You'll never have a friend so faithful and true.

Q: When was the last time your wife has heard you growling over God's Word?

Be a lion and not a mouse!

At the Foot of the Cross

♦ At the foot of the Cross,
 Known as Calvary.
 Blind, deaf, and lost,
 I found forgiveness, rich and free.

At the foot of the cross,

There is mercy for me.

I looked to Christ, and counted the cost;

Never regretted, bowing my knee.

My Salvation

Oh, King of the nations, My peace and salvation, I praise You today, For showing the way.

The truth and the life, Christ is the way,
For my sins He did re-pay.
All other religions are quite a-skew,
Only in the Son can you find life a-new.

John Newton on Walking with God

♦ By faith in Christ I walk with God, With heav'n, my journeys'-end, in view; Supported by his staff and rod, My road is safe and pleasant too,

With him sweet converse I maintain,
Great as he is I dare be free;
I tell him all my grief and pain,
And he reveals his love to me.

Make Him True

A Prayer for William Grant By Grampa

Christmas 2018

♦ Thank you, Father, for the gift of love, For all Your blessings from above. Hear our prayer, and forgive our sin, Be our Savior, Lord, and Friend.

To William Grant be faithful and true,
Making him strong, through and through.
Guide him and lead him, all his days,
Make him wise, in all his ways.

Your Word is perfect, converting the soul:
Washed in the blood, make William whole.
Bless this boy with a godly mind,
Always just, and always kind.

Teach him your law, holy and good, To obey his parents, as he should. Gladly owning Christ as King, Pleasing to God in everything!

When troubles come, as they surely will,
Quiet his heart, and make him still.
When fear and doubt knock on the door,
Make him like an eagle soar.

Since Jesus came, to seek the lost, Keep this boy, near Calvary's cross, Up that mountain, he must climb, To renew his heart, all the time.

Like a lion may William be,
Always striving to make men free.
Saying "Yes" to his Lord, and "No" to sin,
Carefully living, souls to win.

Not my will, may he pray,
To obey Thy Word, every day.
To William Grant be faithful and true,
Making him strong, through and through.

Cruci dum spiro Fido

A Prayer on Walking with God

A Prayer for TJ by Grampa

Micah 6:8 He hath shewed thee, O man, what is good; and what doth the LORD require of thee, but to do justly, and to love mercy, and to walk humbly with thy God?

Most High God, No God every required so little!

May this verse be remembered all the days of his life, To do the good, and avoid any strife. Remember this man, and show him Your grace, May Your love and goodness, he always embrace.

Pride is the undoing of many a man,
Help him to fight this sin, with all that he can;
Taking up the cross each and every day,
Showing mercy to others in every way.

When the night comes, and darkness settles in, Remove the doubt and fear that comes to men.

Show him the faith of the wise and meek.

Humbling himself, Your favor to seek.

Some say the world is won with muscle and might;

Men of the Word, bring faith to the fight.

The world is not conquered by strength alone;

Our Lord saved sinners with his blood did atone.

Let him remember the cross, and the shame Christ bore,
The scars, the bruises, and more.
From the splinters of the cross, His love did impart
From Your love and lordship, let him never depart,

Though he fight the forces of night,

Guide this man, by your holy light.

May he look to the cross, and find strength from above,

Dying to self while sharing your love.

Cruci dum spiro fido.

An Eagle's Heart

A Prayer Elias by Grampa (2025)

♦ Lord, Your house stands in the heavens;
Fill this eagle's heart with holy passions,
May Elias always seek your face;

To enjoy your peace, and all Your grace.

Let his heart be faithful and true.

Always in deep pursuit of You.

Soaring alone like an eagle in the skies;

May he be holy and faithful in your eyes.

Gliding by faith on eagles wings,

May the victories of our Lord, he always sing.

Let this eagle be faithful and true,

Always in deep pursuit of you.

When skies turn dark, and are filled with rain,
Let him remember our Lord, and all his pain.

If doubt arises in his heart,
May he from your ways never depart.

Let this eagle be faithful and true,
Always in deep pursuit of you.

Incline his ear to hear your Word,
And, may his prayers always be heard.
Let his joys be many, and his burdens light
Hold him precious in your sight.
Let this eagle, be faithful and true,
Always in deep pursuit of you.

May he with other eagles fly;
Above the clouds on high.
For the glories of the Lord to see;
To honor Christ, and to set men free.
Let his heart be faithful and true,
Always in deep pursuit of you.

A Prayer for Businessmen

Palm 128:1-2 Blessed is every one that feareth the LORD; that walketh in his ways. For thou shalt eat the labour of thine hands: happy shalt thou be, and it shall be well with thee.

♦ Lord, thank you for your grace, and for sending your Son to save sinners.

I asked you for guidance, and you put me in the business profession.

Help me to fear You and not failure; to fear You and not poverty; to fear you and not men.

Help me to be honest and true, a man of integrity that people can trust. To be tough and tender, kind and fair, prudent but generous,

simple but not presumptuous, always working hard but not a slave to work.

May men be able to say of me, "Because of the way he conducted his business, I know there is God above."

May money be a tool to meet needs and not a god that rules me.

In all business projections there are risks. Help me to be wise and say "No!" to bad deals. Deliver me from idealism, lusts, and idolatry.

Deliver me from deceivers, lies, and liars. May I never be one of them.

Lord, in my success, help me to make others successful. In all my contracts, may all parties be winners.

Guard my tongue from false claims; and, help me to be careful in what I say. May men honor Your name by the what I do and the words I speak. Amen!

Prayers for Prodigals

Cain, Esau, Samuel's sons, and David's sons did not follow the faith of their fathers. And, so it remains today, prodigal sons and fathers broken.

Romans 8:32 For I am persuaded, that neither death, nor life, nor angels, nor principalities, nor powers, nor things present, nor things to come

♦ Lord, help my son to know the truth. Set him free from his sin.

Jeremiah 31:16 Thus saith the LORD; Refrain thy voice from weeping, and thine eyes from tears: for thy work shall be rewarded, saith the LORD; and they shall come again from the land of the enemy.

♦ Lord, bring my son back from the enemy.

1 Timothy 6:10 For the love of money is the root of all evil". This verse is a warning against the dangers of loving money too much and the spiritual peril of wandering from the faith in pursuit of wealth. The verse continues, "which while some coveted after, they have erred from the faith, and pierced themselves through with many sorrows".

♦ Lord, deliver my son from the love of money.

Exodus 20:12 Honour thy father and thy mother: that thy days may be long upon the land which the LORD thy God giveth thee.

♦ Lord, give my son a heart to love your law and to obey it that it might go well with him.

Jeremiah 3:22 Return, O backsliding children, and I will heal your backslidings.

♦ O Healer of Hearts, if it be your will restore my Son to You . . . and to us.

Prayers for the Sick

Psalm 41:3

♦ Lord, thank you for the many years of happiness we have enjoyed. Remember our daughter and her suffering. I May you be pleased to restore her health and encourage her heart during this battle. Have mercy, Oh Lord. In Jesus name, Amen!

2 Corinthians 12:9

♦ Lord, we do not understand your ways, but we know these trials are given out of love for our good. Give grace, we pray. Help us all to rejoice in your sovereignty and to believe that your power works best in weakness. Amen!

Deuteronomy 31:8

♦ Lord, we are afraid! But, you promised never, never, never to abandon us. In the precious name of your Son, calm our hearts; give us light in these dark times that we might rejoice and glorify You. Amen!

Psalm 46:1

♦ Lord, be our refuge, shelter, and protector during these difficult hours. Showers us with faith and peace. Glorify your Name! Amen!

Romans 16:20

♦ Lord, we feel week and oppressed by the enemy. Crush Satan under our feet and may Your peace accomplish another victory. Amen!

Psalm 41:3

♦ Lord, we are feeling an eclipse of your love during this crisis. Open our eyes to see and believe that you will sustain our loved one on this sickbed and restore him to health. Amen!

Romans 8:28

♦ Lord, our faith is being tested by this fiery trial -- difficult for us, but not difficult for you. Give us the faith to believe that good will come out of this crisis and that our loved one will walk again to glorify You. We claim your precious promise in the name of the Lord Jesus Christ. Amen!

Prayers for Daughters & Grandaughters

♦ Lord, we thank you for our golden treasures -- precious daughters and daughter-in-laws—roses in our bouquet; diamonds in our hearts.

It is not in man to know the way. Be with them and guide them. Show them the wonders of Christ on Calvary's Road. Draw them to You by the cords of your love. Help them to shun Eve's curse, to put a lock on their tongue, to listen more and to talk less, to speak with wisdom to all, to humbly and happily submit themselves to their husbands and to do them good all the days of their life.

May they escape the sins of this age and the lies of world (feminism). As women of the Word, help them to live modestly; to train their children in the way of the cross: wisely, patiently, gently, and always waiting on You as women who fear God. Amen!

Cruci dum spiro fido!

"May the righteous be glad and rejoice before God; may they be happy and joyful." - Psalm 68:3

"Jesus said to her, 'I am the resurrection and the life. The one who believes in Me will live, even though they die; and whoever lives by believing in Me will never die. Do you believe this?'" - John 11:25-26

"You desire but do not have, so you kill. You covet but you cannot get what you want, so you quarrel and fight. You do not have because you do not ask God." - James 4:2

♦ Lord, in your mercy and grace, may the women in our family believe in the Lord Jesus Christ and His accomplishments at Calvary with all their heart. May they be dignified and queenly.

Open their eyes to see that life is found sola Christo, sola gracia, and sola fide in You alone. May my precious children become Your child and glorify you. Give us the hope of eternity spent together with You - and each other - as we each put our trust in You. Amen!

Romans 6:11 So you also must consider yourselves dead to sin and alive to God in Christ Jesus.

♦ May my daughters think like those united with Christ, alive to God and dead to sin.

May they be self-controlled withtheir tongues, and know the sweetness of your Spirit in all they do like the holy mother: submissive to you, reverent, humble, and modest.

May they be daughters of Sarah with a meek and quiet spirit, subjecting themselves happily to their husbands, veiling themselves as testimony to your law-order, speaking carefully and wisely for the good of your People. Deliver them from loving this world and all its vanity. Amen!

May their husbands learn your Word, be strong like kings. May they walk alone apart from the world, and obey the Scriptures faithfully and courageously. Amen!

A Wonderful Daughter-in-Law

To Kelly by Grampa (2025)

♦ As my son grew to manhood, We prayed he'd find, A wife to love, Who was gentle and kind.

Someone to talk to,
About his hopes and fears;
Someone he could laugh with,
And pray with through the years.

We never dreamed,
he would suffer so much,
And need a wife,
with such a caring touch.

You have risen to be more, than we could think or ask,

An angel from God,

With a difficult task.

May the Lord give you comfort and strength to endure,

To serve Him humbly, With a heart that's pure.

Know you are truly loved,
And deeply admired!
The wonderful daughter-in-law,
We have so long-desired.

A Prayer for Guidance

A Prayer for Nicole by Grampa (2025)

Our first granddaughter, What a joy and delight! Humble and happy, And extremely bright!

So obedient to Mom and Dad,
A golden treasure making us rich.
May God pilot your life,
Is our dearest wish.

All the little things, You said and did, Were in our hearts, As a treasure hid.

Those days are gone,
And we are sad,
For those special times,
We are glad.

May the Lord lead you,

And be your guide.

May all your days be filled with light,

With Christ in your heart and Him by your side.

Loved and admired by Grammy and Grampa. We are better and richer because of you!

Golden Treasures

Remembering Kara by Grampa (2025)

♦ There is a special place in our hearts, Reserved only for you.
A special place, where memories are stored, Golden treasures, that are real and true.

The little things you said or did,
The sound of laughter, or the sight of tears,
Pictures we saved,
For our dying years.

Those times were so precious,
But, quickly passed.
Golden treasures,
That will always last.

And now you are a young woman,
So full of desire,
With hopes and dreams,
You hope to acquire.

As we look at you, we want you to know,
That are hearts, are filled with pride.
We feel like eagles in the sky,
Wings spread, ready to glide.

Even though all of this happened so fast,
And though we knew, it would not last,
We are grateful beyond words
For the happiness that's past.

Always remember, we love you deeply For adding so much happiness to our life.

A Prayer for Abby

♦ A beautiful, handsome little girl,
 With a cute little smile and beautiful curls.
 A precious grandchild in our eyes.
 Make her strong, make her wise.

Thank you for Abby, a gift to our family.

Let her live life with sanctity.

It is not in women to know the way,

"Guide me by Your Word," may she say.

Lord, teach her the way of the cross,

May she never be lost.

Save her soul and with her be,

Training her godly to be. Such a rarity.

When it comes time to marry a man,

Help her to love him the best she can.

May she like Sarah be,

With a meek and quiet spirit for all to see.

As she becomes a mother with children in arms,
May she raise them without earth's luring charms.

May they be grounded on grace, and the laws of our Lord.

May her hands serve others with love to afford.

Lead Her to Christ

A Prayer for London by Grampa Brook April 10, 2015

Founded on Psalm 139

♦ Fearfully made, no one denies;
 Wonderfully made; feet, hands. and eyes.
 Made in secret, under God's great care;
 Made in the womb; chin, nose, and hair.

My form and my frame, written in Your Book;
Where You can See, and You can look.
Your thoughts about me are precious to You;
More in number than I can accrue.

Search me, O God, and know my heart; Lead me to Christ, let me never depart. Search me, O God, and know my thoughts;

Cleanse my heart of sin's dark spots.

When I sit down, and I rise up;

Guide my life, and fill my cup.

Lead me in the everlasting way;

Guide me and guard me, this I pray.

Cruci dum spiro Fido.

Best Advice from my Sister

My sister came to me,
Recognizing a flaw in my ministry.
Respectfully she came,
Without any blame.

"Why are you dressing so casually?"

People may treat the Word indifferently,

Consider wearing a suit and tie,

In order to teach holiness from on high.

Best Advice I ever had!

Lord, thank you for my sister, her wisdom, and gentleness in Christ. She's been an example to me. Hear her prayers. May her faith be rewarded and her hopes come true.

Political and Spiritual Insights

Lord may this be true of my sons as they maneuver in the business maze full of sharks, deceivers, and thieves.

May your Word be the foundation of my business. May thy kingdom come. May men surrender to your rule in Christ. Amen!

The Fool

♦ There was an old man, who was such a fool
He was rich like a king, and stubborn like a mule
God ingored,
Gold stored,
This is the man that was such a fool.

The Glad Dad

"Honor your Father and Mother."

♦ There was a son who made his father glad, Always working and never sad, Christ obeyed, Riches made,
This is the Son that made his father glad.

The Old Rich Man

♦ There was an old man with dollars to spare, He lived all his life without much care. He did as he pleased,

And lived at ease,

But, for Heaven he did not prepare.

Matthew 19:21 Jesus said to him, "If you would be perfect, go, sell what you possess and give to the poor, and you will have treasure in heaven; and come, follow me.

The Saving Squirrel

♦ There was squirrel that saved nuts like gold, He prepared for winter with its bitter cold, "Each nut a treasure, Saved with pleasure, But over time they got covered with mold.

Matthew 6:19 Lay not up for yourselves treasures upon earth, where moth and rust doth corrupt, and where thieves break through and steal:

Gender Bender Craziness

♦ There was a boy removed from reality, And very confused about his sexuality. To the surgeons he did head, Cut off his manly stead, What a catastrophe!

Sex Education

Beware of Odious Women!

Proverbs 6:24 To keep thee from the evil woman, from the flattery of the tongue of a strange woman.

Proverbs 27:15-16 "A continual dripping on a rainy day . . ."

Proverbs 30:21-23 "For three things the earth is disquieted, and for four which it cannot bear: . . . For an odious woman when she is married . . ."

♦ Not all girls are made of sugar and spice and everything nice, Many cook a brew of hate and vice. With fingers a-shakin', and tongues a-waggin', With the eyes of snake, and mouths like a dragon.

Odious women are under Eve's curse,
Who will ruin your life and make it worse.
Cluckin' like a hen,
They try to rule men.

Beware of their swaying hips,
And wet, ruby-red lips.
Beware of the charm of a feminist,
To own your wallet is their quest.

With tongues a flappin', and foxy-bad,
They'll make you sad, but never glad.
With a tiger's roar, they'll rip off your face,
Leave you bloody and in disgrace.

With a razor-like tongue, they'll cut out your heart,

Leaving you tattered, and torn apart.

Complain and blame, is the name of their game.

Tangle with them, and they'll leave you lame.

On the outside, they may be shapely or fat;
On the inside, they're as filthy as a rat.

Call them devious and odious, and very shrewd,
One bite from them and you'll be screwed, chewed, and brewed.

The Hunter and the Prey

♦ There was a siren who was very bright, But, she wore her dresses extremely tight. She hunted a man, To capture his hand, Now, they both live in darkness and not the light.

Proverbs 6:26 For by means of a whorish woman a man is brought to a piece of bread: and the adulteress will hunt for his precious life.

The Dying Man

♦ There was a man crying with pain, Because a temptress poisoned his brain. A wiggle with her hips, A kiss on the lips, Now we see why he's dying in pain.

The Man with No Friends

♦ There once was a man who had no friends
A tongue tied in the middle and flappin' at both ends
Best at blathering,
Bad at listening,
This is the man that had no friends.

The Sin of Gluttony

♦ There once was a man from Houston, He ate so much he weighed a ton, Gobble and slurp, Belch and burp, This poor man died of consumption!

The Tragic Church

♦ There was a church that was very charismatic, Their ignorance of Scripture was quite traumatic. Barking like a hounds, Jumping up and down, This was a church so very tragic.

Two Birds a Chirppin' in an Apple Tree

♦ Two birds a chirpin', in an apple tree, Provide a lesson for you and me! Said the Robin to the Sparrow, "Why do people worry so?"

Replied the Sparrow to the Robin, "They have no trust in our Sovereign."

Asked the Robin to the Sparrow, Who tweeted very slow,

"How can this be?
Their Heavenly Father, cares for you and me."

Matthew 6:26 Behold the fowls of the air: for they sow not, neither do they reap, nor gather into barns; yet your heavenly Father feedeth them. Are ye not much better than they?

The Cop

♦ There was a cop who was very bad, Always angry and boot-stomping mad. He turned on lights, And started fights. The cop who was very bad.

♦ Cops are not lawyers, can't you see?
Scary, sleazy, and sneaky, they can be.
Professional accusers they are,
Away from them, stay very far.
Scary, sleazy, and sneaky, they can be.

♦ Never talk to a cop in blue,
What you say will be used against you.
Be brilliant,
Be silent!
Never talk to a cop in blue.

♦ Shut your mouth, you fool, Don't he-haw like a mule. Shut your mouth, and do not snort, If you have something to say, say it in court. Shut your mouth, you fool.

♦ Don't fall for bills of attainder, A trick, clever and sinister, Claim your rights the best you can, Stand up like a godly man! Rights you have, given by the Father.

The Family Pet

♦ There was a family who wanted a pet,
A dawg over which they need not fret.

A dawg convenient for them, Never thinking about him, Dogs are travelers you see,
They must be taken on a walking spree.

Dogs needs walks two times a day.

A friend to play with as he may.

So, if you want a pet
Off the couch you gotta get.

The Happy Dawg,

Obeying, Playing, Walking, training Smelling, barking, Tugging, Running, Fetching, Petting, Eating, Sleeping.

Is your dawg happy?

Two Monkeys Sittin' in a Tree

by Grampa (2025)

A poem about feminism and role reversals in our time.

♦ Two little monkeys sittin' in a tree, One named Gisella, the other Dummy. They loved each other until one day, Gisella decided to go her own way.

Gisella went to monkey-school, and Dummy stayed home.

Gisella learned foolology, femininology, and bananaology; but puffed up like foam,

Dummy stayed home and did the chores, Until ignorance came out his pores.

Gisella wasn't happy, and began to complain,
Why did I marry a primate, so profane?
I earn all the bananas, so I ought to be boss,
If I don't lead, we'll suffer a loss.

So Gisella took over, and began to rule, Wondering why Dummy was such a fool.

Two little monkeys sittin' in a tree,

Both as unhappy as monkeys can be.

Armenianism

By Christian

♦ There was a young man for Armenianism, Who about salvation had a schism. He thought if he did his best, God would do the rest. Isn't this related to Pharisaism?

A Church Disaster

♦ There was a church with very weak men, Who all at once began to sin. A woman pastor, What a disaster! This is a church with very weak men.

1 Timothy 2:11-12 Let the woman learn in silence with all subjection. But I suffer not a woman to teach, nor to usurp authority over the man, but to be in silence.

The Authority of God's Word

♦ Another problem I see, Men don't believe in authority. They take God's Word as a holy joke, For old ladies their souls to stroke. Why don't men bow the knee out of necessity?

Oh, the pride of modern men,

Blind to the Scriptures, and so full of sin.

Full of self and worldly stuff,

Thinking their smart and really tough.

Oh, the arrogance of modern men.

The Scripures are true and wisely given,
Light and life called "Revelation",
Accurate, holy, and correct,
A body of truth our souls to perfect,
Golden treasures, gems from heaven.

2 Timothy 3:16-17 All scripture is given by inspiration of God, and is profitable for doctrine, for reproof, for correction, for instruction in righteousness: That the man of God may be perfect, throughly furnished unto all good work

Where's the Holy Veil?

1 Corinthians 11:1-16

♦ Why don't headcoverings women wear?
Get out the sissors, cut off their hair.
Tis a symbol of authority!
Curled tresses and scanty dresses, a sign of vanity!
Obey the ordinance, and keep your hair.

1 Corinthians 11:6 For if the woman be not covered, let her also be shorn: but if it be a shame for a woman to be shorn or shaven, let her be covered. (Not a joke)

The Idolatrous Tattoo

♦ There was a man, who got a tattoo,
Who thought he was hot and really cool:
In etching bears and bees,
He committed idolatry,
Forever on his arm an ugly tattoo.
In the eyes of God a great taboo.

Exodus 20:3-4 Thou shalt have no other gods before me. Thou shalt not make unto thee any graven image, or any likeness of any thing that is in heaven above, or that is in the earth beneath, or that is in the water under the earth.

Leviticus 19:28 "You shall not make any cuts on your body for the dead or tattoo yourselves,"

The Vile Church

♦ There was a church which lots of guile, Taking up the cross was not their style. Fun and games, Was their aims, This was a church that was very vile.

The Good Church

♦ There was a church that was good for the nation, But, it was not a government corporation. Following the Scriptures the best they could, Obeying God's Word as they knew they should. Honoring Christ with holy passion.

The Seven Deadly Sins



♦ Don't be naive and stupid as can be, Eating fruits from the poisonous tree.

Grand Poems 2.2 Page **53** of **73**

Make it your goal to be pure and whole, The seven deadly sins will poison your soul.

1 LUST

Naughty thoughts about kisses and more,
This is rotten to the core.

A burning fever you dare not trust,
A serious sin known as fleshly LUST.

2 GLUTTONY

Gorging on cake, pasta, beer and more,
This is rotten to the core.
You dare not go on an eating spree,
A serious sin know as GLUTTONY.

3 GREED

Excessive desire for money and more,

This is rotten to the core.

Craving more stuff, where does it lead?

A serous sin known as burning GREED.

4 SLOTH

Sleeping and dreaming and more,

This is rotten to the core.

Refusing to work or to cook your broth,

A serious sin known as idle SLOTH.

5 WRATH

Arguing, yelling, accusing and more,
This is rotten to the core.
Nostrils flared and on the warpath,
A serious sin known as anger and WRATH.

6 ENVY

Jealousy, resentment and much more
This is rotten to the core.
Others achieve having more than me,
A serous sin known as green ENVY.

7 PRIDE

Unteachable, self-centered and much more
This is rotten to the core
Nose in the air and a swagger in his stride,
A serious sin know as haughty PRIDE.

GOD'S REMEDY

Seven deadly sins and much more,

These are rotten to the core,

Surrender to the cross and follow your Lord,

The fruit of these sins, you cannot afford.

Cruci Dum Spiro Fido.

Led a Man to Christ One Day

♦ Led a man to Christ one day, Got so busy, I forgot to pray, Back into the world he went, As if I had never been sent. Got so busy, I forgot to pray

Grace is the Key

♦ A good marriage, is guided by law, But breaking the rules, love can thaw.

Every marriage has a spat, When pain enters in and love goes flat.

When rules are broken, grace can cure, Forgiveness is best, that's for sure.

Saying, "I am sorry" won't get you through,

A recognition of wrong is due!

Don't let sin flatten your song, Simply say, "I was wrong,"

To restore your love, use this key: "Will you forgive and set me free?"

Keep the rules so accurate be, Always remember, grace is the Key.

The Woke Church

♦ There was a church that was very woke, Lots of money and never broke. Preaching prosperity, Lacking integrity,
With riches and wealth as their only cloke.

The Antinomian Church

Antinomians = against law

♦ There was a church that despised God's law.

That ended up with quite a flaw.

Standards not, Conviction not, Discipline not, Strong not, Holy not,

This is the permissive church that despised God's law.

The Liar from the IRS

♦ There was a Liar from the I R S.
Made peoples lives such a mess.
Crowing,
Badgering,
Goosing,

Hawking,
Sniping,
Vulturing,
This is the Liar from the I R S.

Proverbs 21:6

The getting of treasures by a lying tongue is a fleeting vapor and a snare of death

Taxi taxi

♦ Oh taxi, taxi, oh rootie
Taxi taxi, oh rootie, ooh
Taxi, taxi, oh rootie,

A wop bop a loo bop a lop bom boom.

I got a guv, named D.C., she almost drive me crazy,
I got a guv, named D.C., she almost drive me crazy,
She knows how to ruin me, yes indeed,
Boy you don't know what she do to me.

Taxi taxi, oh rootie

Taxi taxi, oh rootie, ooh

Taxi taxi, oh rootie

Taxi taxi, oh rootie,

Taxi taxi, oh rootie,

A wop bop a loo bop a lop bam boom.

So What?

Zionism

Jews are the people of God they say,

♦ When I asked about the glut,
Of murder, genocide, and starvation of Palestinian people,
They said, "So What?"

When I asked about the glut,
Of stealing homes, lands, and fields,
They said, "So What?"

When I asked about the glut,
Of homosexuality, prostitution, and pedophilia,
They said, "So What?"

Since the door of heaven is shut, to Jewish murders, liars, and thieves, I ask myself, so what?

Lying Politicians

Why do politicians lie, And drain our wallets dry, Steal and deceive until we die?

Are we so stupid and naïve, Of that talent to deceive. Of stolen rights never to retrieve?

Why do senators love the dollar, While good men live like a pauper, And street people live in squalor?

Why such love for greed and power?

Shouldn't we be mocking them at this hour,

Even hanging them from the nearest tower?

Don't Fret Abortion

♦ There is wickedness flooding the land, Mothers killing babies an evil plan. The Scripture has a word about this deed, And the wicked killing their seed.

Fret not thyself with evildoers,
Their sins and deadly maneuvers.
So don't be angry, with voice slurred,
God permits it, to fulfill His Word.

God uses the deadly deed,
To cut off the wicked and their seed,
To cleanse society of ugly sins,
To reduce the crimes of evil men.

No more more addicts, on the street, Lying and stealing, their Maker to meet. God uses abortion, such a sinful deed, To cut off wicked, and their seed. Yes, there is iniquity flooding the land, Mothers killing babies, what an evil plan! Don't Fret thyself because of this sin, When the wicked kill their kin.

Psalm 37:1, 2, 28

Fret not thyself because of evildoers . . . For they shall soon be cut down like the grass . . . the seed of the wicked shall be cut off.

On the Sin of Pornography

Oh, be careful little eyes what you see, Avoiding the sin of pornography. For quitters and losers. Spawned by seducers. So, close your eyes and do not see.

The Root of Bitterness

Hebrews 12:15

Looking diligently lest any man fail of the grace of God; lest any root of bitterness springing up trouble you, and thereby many be defiled;

♦ Bitterness is wormwood, so stay away,
 Add grace as much as you can,
 Gall has no place with a Christian man.

Regarding sins of others do not display, Trust the Father, Who plans our day!.

The Transvestie

♦ From the cave of ugliness it came, I may never be the same. Butch hair, Glasses wear, Square chin, Fair skin, Chest breastly, Frame fatty, Baggy jeans, A scary scene! Rosy cheeks, Quite a freak! A monster from deep, What a creep! An "it", From the pit. Run! Flee! An emergency! Far from this he-she. I had to be!

Is Michelle Obama a Tranny?

♦ My, what big eyes you have!

What a big nose you have!
What a big jaw you have!
What big shoulders you have!
What big muscles you have!
A woman? Oh, so funny.
Tranny, tranny check your fanny!

The Chatterbox from Tennessee

♦ There once was a chatterbox from Tennessee, So verbose and talkative I had to flee. A man so dull, Numb in the skull, When I see him a-comin'. I still have to flee.

Proverbs 17:28"Even a fool, when he holdeth his peace, is counted wise: and he that shutteth his lips is esteemed a man of understanding"

A Lesson on Human Nature

♦ I never met a man who knew less than me, Even though I had a Ph.D.

A chatterbox can't listen, they can only talk, And this is what's wrong, with their daily walk.

God gave men two ears and one tongue, To learn God's ways, both old and young. In order to learn, a man must hear, To shut his mouth and open his ears.

Talkers tend to rattle on, about what they know, With lyrics that glow, and theatrics for show.

They bust their buttons in their pride, But, they can't learn nutt'on, with mouth open wide.

Much of what babblers had to say, I didn't have a clue, Because what they said, really wasn't true.

James 1:19 Wherefore, my beloved brethren, let every man be swift to hear, slow to speak, slow to wrath:

The Climate Change Disaster

We're cooked! Freezing hot!
The world is now boiling.
We're frogs in a pot.
Ice caps are melting,
Run in circles scream and shout!

Raise taxes now

So we can be cool,

Call Congress and make 'em vow,

To raise taxes and up the pool,

To wipe the sweat off my brow.

Can't you see I'm burning up in all this snow,

Confession

Psalm 32 and 1 John 1:5-10

I acknowledged my sin unto thee, and mine iniquity have I not hid.

I said, I will confess my transgressions unto the LORD; and thou
forgavest the iniquity of my sin. Selah.

♦ If you error, in your way, And sin robs your day, To relieve the stress Be quick to confess! Believe, rest, and obey.

The Secret

Ephesians 5:18; Galatians 5:22-23

♦ This is the secret, Be filled with the Spirit:

Temperance abstaining, a lion waiting,
Meekness restraining, a race horse standing,
Faith believing, a wolf howling,
Goodness giving, a mother bird feeding,
Gentleness touching, a butterfly kissing,
Longsuffering enduring, geese migrating,

Peace resting, koala bears clinging, Joy smiling, dolphins swimming, Love sharing, honeybees gathering,

From evil abstaining:
Not lusting,
Not complaining,
Not jumping,
Not indulging,
Not chattering.

In the Vine remaining,
Sin restraining.
Love growing,
Conscience cleaning,
The mind learning,
Hands serving.

Be filled with the Spirit, This is the Secret.

Pity the Prune

♦ Do I look like a prune, That's really old?
A plum that's come out of the cold?
Pity the prune,
That misunderstood fruit.
Looking like an unpressed suit.
Me a wrinkled prune?

Meanderings on Death

1 Corinthians 15:55

O death, where is thy sting? O grave, where is thy victory?

56 The sting of death is sin; and the strength of sin is the law.

57 But thanks be to God, which giveth us the victory through our

2 Corinthians 5:1

For we know that if our earthly house of this tabernacle were dissolved, we have a building of God, an house not made with hands, eternal in the heavens.

2 For in this we groan, earnestly desiring to be clothed upon with our house which is from heaven:

♦ One last Battle to be fought, With pain, sorrow, and drought.

Dear Lord,
You've showed me Your love, all day long,
You are my life, and my song.
I've traveled upon the sea of life,
With all its darkness and dreary strife.

One last battle to be fought,
With pain, sorrow, and drought.
Let faith's fight, with courage be,
Until the light, at heaven's gate I see.

And when this vessel comes to port,

And my life tis ever cut short.

Let not my faith roam,

Please take me home.

Mid dark thoughts, of a gray tombstone, Remember Him, who endured alone, All the terrors of the old rugged cross, For Christ is gain and not a loss.

In your arms I want to be,
Faith turned to sight, and Christ to see.
Clothe me on high, with a body anew,
Anticipating the joy, of eternity with you.

Strengthen my soul, with faith from above.

Hold me close, like a turtle dove,

Let my faith be stronger than the pain,

Clinging to your Word that Christ is gain.

Stand by me.

"When the hosts of hell assail
And my strength begins to fail

Thou Who never lost a battle

Stand by me, stand by me"

With my work done,
And battles all won,
Thank You, Lord, for Your guidance in life,
For precious children, and a precious wife.

Guide the ones with whom my soul is bound,

By light from above,

And with Your love,

Providing for each; I hope for a crown.

John 11:26, which says, "And whosoever liveth and believeth in me shall never die"

Philippians 1:21 For me to live is Christ, to die is gain.

A Little Haiku

Studying the Word and finding a principle is good, but rewriting it in Haiku poetic style challenges the brain and brings the lesson home.

Psalm 1:1-2 . . . Blessed is the man that walketh not in the counsel of the ungodly, nor standeth in the way of sinners, nor sitteth in the seat of the scornful. 2 But his delight is in the law of the LORD; and in his law doth he meditate (roar like a lion) day and night.

A lion roaring
The Word the prey,
His soul feeding.

Psalm 120:2 2 Deliver my soul, O LORD, from lying lips, and from a deceitful tongue.

Anger fills the room
Silence on lips of the wise
frowns blown away.

Luke 1:38 And Mary said, Behold the handmaid of the Lord; be it unto me according to thy word. And the angel departed from her.

Chin tucked, head down
A baby in the womb

A bright Star born.

Proverbs 30:21-23 For three things the earth is disquieted, and for four which it cannot bear: For a servant when he reigneth; and a fool when he is filled with meat; For an odious woman when she is married; and an handmaid that is heir to her mistress.

A witch's brew,
A frog's toe, a dog's tongue
A feminist born.

Psalm 140:3 They have sharpened their tongues like a serpent; adders' poison is under their lips. Selah.

A slithering tongue, Adders poison on the lips, hissing to destroy.

Psalm 120:2 Deliver my soul, O LORD, from lying lips, and from a deceitful tongue.

Anger fills the room,
Silence on lips of the wise,
frowns blown away.

Luke 1:38 And Mary said, Behold the handmaid of the Lord; be it unto me according to thy word. And the angel departed from her.

Chin tucked, head down,

A baby in the womb,

A bright Star born.

Proverbs 1:10 My son, if sinners entice thee, consent thou not.

In the clouds above.

Vultures diving to destroy.

The stars say "No!"

Matthew 6:9 After this manner therefore pray ye: Our Father which art in heaven, Hallowed be thy name.

Soldiers salute, Imperial mantle red, Kings bowing low.

Matthew 6:10 Thy kingdom come. Thy will be done in earth, as it is in heaven.

Warming Sun,
Spring flowers bloom,
Fragrances!

Colossians 2:3 In whom are hid all the treasures of wisdom and knowledge.

Sparkling Stone,
Bright Colors Splash,
Jewel of God!

A Final Word

Seeds planted,
Hope you do better than I,
Flowers blooming,

Publications

Books we have written:

- 1. Biblical Standards for Civil Rulers, Form #13.013
- 2. Should Christians Always Obey the State?, Form #13.014
- 3. The Crisis of Church Incorporation, Form #13.017
- 4. A Family Under God, Form #17.001
- 5. Origin of the Bible, Form #17.002
- 6. The Gospel of the Kingdom of God, Form #17.003
- 7. Five Pillars of the Gladiator Gospel, Form #17.004
- 8. Prayer Puts Power In Your Life, Form #17.005
- 9. Old Testament Theology, Form #17.006
- 10. Towards Exegetical Eschatology, Form #17.007
- 11. A Commentary on Revelation, Form #17.055
- 12. Commentary on Romans 13, Form #17.056
- 13. What is the Date of the Biblical Flood?, Form #17.057
- 14. Behold His Glory, Form #17.059
- 15. Proverbs for Wisdom, Form #17.060
- 16. The Pursuit of Piety, Form #17.061
- 17. 101 Sermons on God and Government, Form #17.062
- 18. Marriage Counseling Manual, Form #17.063
- 19. Words for the Weary, Form #17.064
- 20. Correcting the Upside Down Gospel, Form #17.065
- 21. Sermons on the Gospel of the Lord Jesus Christ, Form #17.066
- 22. If I Could Do Church Again, Form #17.067
- 23. The Feminist War Against God's Law, Form #17.068
- 24. The Case for Head Coverings and Restoring God's Law Order to the Church, Form #17.069
- 25. The Sovereignty of God and the Madness of Politics, Form #17.070
- 26. The Pilgrim's Songbook, Form #17.071
- 27. The Route of the Exodus, Form #17.073
- 28. Commentary on the Book of Psalms. Form #17.074
- 29. Imprecatory Psalms, Form #17.075
- 30. Political Psalms, Form #17.076
- 31. Psalms for the Troubled Heart, Form #17.077
- 32. Psalms Messianic, Form #17.078
- 33. Psalms of Asaph, Form #17.079
- 34. <u>Double Through Discipleship</u>, Form #17.080
- 35. The Art of Conflict Management, Form #17.081
- 36. Know Who You Are In Christ, Form #17.082
- 37. From Corinth to American Churches, Form #17.083
- 38. When Satan Goes to Church, Form #17.084
- 39. Nike Greek Grammar Manual, Form #17.085

- 40. The Magna Carta, Form #10.017
- 41. The Case for Common Law Marriage, Form #13.022
- 42. The Matthew 24 Preterist Interpretation, Form #17.086
- 43. The Passover Seder, Form #17.087
- 44. The Pastor Lawyer, Form #17.088
- 45. Justification v. Sanctification, Form #17.089
- 46. Doctrinal Issues in Modern Times, Form #17.090
- 47. Opting Out of the Tax System, Form #10.018
- 48. Opting Out of Property Tax, Form #14.023
- 49. Freedom Documents, Form #10.019
- 50. <u>Jewish Myths</u>, Form #17.091
- 51. America's Worst President, Form #17.092
- 52. Our Greatest Heroes, Form #17.093
- 53. Solomon's Sex Education for Sons, Form #17.094
- 54. Why So Much Suffering in WWII?, Form #17.095
- 55. Learning to Say No, Form #10.020
- 56. Winning in Traffic Court, Litigation Tool #10.022
- 57. Apostasy and the Man of Sin, Form #17.096
- 58. The Proper Place of God's Law Today, Form #17.097
- 59. God's Christmas Storm, Form #17.098
- 60. The Greatest Need in the Church, Form #17.099